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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE  

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

PANAMA CITY DIVISION  

  

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA    

    

v.  Case No. 5:20cr28-MW/MJF-1  

    

MARGO DEAL ANDERSON,    

  

                                Defendant.  

  

_______________________________/  

  

GOVERNMENT’S RESPONSE IN OPPOSITION TO  

 DEFENDANT ANDERSON’S MOTION FOR BILL OF PARTICULARS  

  

  COMES NOW the United States of America, by and through the undersigned  

Assistant United States Attorneys, respectfully responds in opposition to “Defendant 

Anderson’s Motion for Bill of Particulars” (ECF No. 384).  In sum, the motion 

should be denied because the third superseding indictment (ECF No. 355) and the 

voluminous discovery already disclosed and tendered have already provided the 

defense with sufficient information to avoid the type of surprise at trial that a bill of 

particulars is meant to prevent.  

I. Factual Background  

1. The papers filed by all parties in this case to date painstakingly detail 

the factual allegations and lengthy procedural history.  The government does not 

recite herein all of the facts and history that are already a matter of record; rather, 
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only factual allegations and procedural history directly germane to this response will 

be alleged.   

2. Unlike the previous superseding indictments in this case, Count One of 

the third superseding indictment alleges a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, that is, a 

conspiracy to commit theft or bribery concerning programs receiving Federal funds 

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 666(a). ECF No. 355.  Under a circuit precedent, a 

violation of § 666 is shown by things of value given if “intended generally to 

influence the official’s decisions.” United States v. McNair, 605 F.3d 1152, 1187 

(11th Cir. 2010).  

3. Count One of the third superseding indictment identifies Defendants  

Anderson and Finch as participants in the alleged criminal conspiracy. Id. at 4-11. 

Count One details the object of the conspiracy—that both defendants conspired to 

violate 18 U.S.C. § 666(a): Defendant Anderson by “knowingly and corruptly 

solicit[ing] and demand[ing] for the benefit of any person, and accept[ing] and 

agree[ing] to accept anything of value from any person, intending to be influenced 

and rewarded…” and Defendant Finch by “knowingly and corrupting giv[ing],  

offer[ing], and agree[ing] to give anything of value to any person, with intent to 

influence and reward an agent of the City [of Lynn Haven]….” Id. at 6.  Count One 

also explains, in factual detail, the manner and means of the conspiracy, which 

included allegations that Defendant Finch provided Defendant Anderson and her 
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husband travel to the Florida Keys and Biloxi, Mississippi, and a motorhome, and 

that Defendant Anderson performed actions as City Mayor for the benefit of 

Defendant Finch.  Id. at 7-8.    

4. Count One of the third superseding indictment also alleges numerous 

overt acts that were committed in furtherance of the conspiracy. Id. at 9-11.  Suffice 

it to say that the third superseding indictment itself puts the defense on notice as to 

what crime the government accuses Defendant Anderson of committing such that it 

enables her to prepare a defense and minimize surprise at trial.  

5. Prior to Defendant Anderson’s motion for a bill of particulars, the 

government had already disclosed and tendered to Defendant Anderson—on its own 

accord and pursuant to order of this Honorable Court—discovery that met and far 

exceeded the government’s discovery obligations, including early Jencks disclosures 

for all witnesses, such as FBI 302s and grand jury transcripts. See Exh. 1 to ECF No.  

380 and ECF No. 256.  

II. Legal Standard  

6. “The purpose of a bill of particulars is threefold: (1) to allow the 

defendant to prepare a defense; (2) to minimize surprise to the defendant at trial; and 

(3) to enable the defendant to plead double jeopardy in the event of a later 

prosecution for the same offense.” United States v. Lynch, No. 09-10078-CR, 2009 

WL 10674929, at *1 (S.D. Fla. July 30, 2009) (citing United States v. Anderson, 799  
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F.2d 1438, 1441 (11th Cir. 1986)).  A bill of particulars “is not designed to compel 

the government to detailed exposition of its evidence or to explain the legal theories 

upon which it intends to rely at trial.” United States v. Roberts, 174 Fed. App'x 475, 

477 (11th Cir. 2006) (quoting United States v. Burgin, 621 F.2d 1352, 1359 (5th Cir. 

1980)).  Further, in denying a defense motion for a bill of particulars in another case, 

this Honorable Court reiterated that “[t]he purpose of a bill of particulars is to secure 

facts, not legal theories.” United States v. Black, No. 1:15CR9-MW/GRJ, 2015 WL  

13427809, at *1 (N.D. Fla. Oct. 16, 2015) (J. Walker) (quoting Rose v. United States, 

149 F.2d 755, 758 (9th Cir. 1945)).  

7. Where the indictment supplies adequate notice of the offense, a bill of 

particulars is unnecessary. See United States v. Martell, 906 F.2d 555, 558 (11th Cir. 

1990).  The decision whether to grant a request for a bill of particulars rests within 

the trial court’s sound discretion. United States v. Hawkins, 661 F.2d 436, 451–52  

(5th Cir. 1981).1  Nonetheless, “[a] defendant is not entitled to a bill of particulars 

with respect to information which is already available through other sources such as 

 
1 “[D]ecisions of the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit…as that court 

existed on September 30, 1981, handed down by that court prior to the close of business on that 

date, shall be binding as precedent in the Eleventh Circuit….” Bonner v. City of Prichard, Ala., 

661 F.2d 1206, 1207 (11th Cir. 1981).  
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the indictment or discovery and inspection.” United States v. Rosenthal, 793 F.2d 

1214, 1227 (11th Cir.), modified, 801 F.2d 378 (11th Cir. 1986); see also Roberts,  

  
174 Fed. App’x at 477 (“A bill of particulars is not required where the information 

sought has already been provided by other sources, such as the indictment and 

discovery”) (emphasis added).  Further, “[g]eneralized discovery is not the proper 

function of a bill of particulars.” United States v. Warren, 772 F.2d 827, 837 (11th 

Cir. 1985) (quoting United States v. Colson, 662 F.2d 1389, 1391 (11th Cir. 1981)).  

8. Denial of a motion for a bill of particulars is appropriate where the 

indictment lists the co-defendants and provides notice of the elements of the charged 

offense. Lynch, 2009 WL at *1. The pre-trial disclosure by the government of 

codefendants’ statements and Jencks material further supports the denial of a motion 

for a bill of particulars. United States v. Draine, 811 F.2d 1419, 1421 (11th Cir.  

1987); Rosenthal, 793 F.2d at 1227 (“Nor is the defendant entitled to a bill of 

particulars with respect to information which is already available through other 

sources such as the indictment or discovery and inspection”) (quoting Colson, 662 

F.2d at 1391); see also Martell, 906 F.2d at 558.  

9. The Eleventh Circuit has identified certain categories of disclosures that 

are not properly requested via a bill of particulars. In this Circuit, “the Government 

is not required to provide the Defendant with . . . more specific acts taken by the 
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Defendant other than those alleged, or the exact times or places of those alleged 

acts.” United States v. Bernard, No. 03-20551 CR, 2003 WL 27381901, at  

*1 (S.D. Fla. Oct. 2, 2003); see, e.g., Colson, 662 F.2d at 1391 (rejecting claim of 

surprise where defendant was not furnished with a list of witnesses before trial);  

Anderson, 799 F.2d at 1442 (affirming denial of bill of particulars demand for list of 

“unindicted coconspirators”); Rosenthal, 793 F.2d at 1227 (“A bill of particulars 

may not be used to compel the government to provide the essential facts regarding 

the existence and formation of a conspiracy. Nor is the government required to 

provide defendants with all overt acts that might be proven at trial”) (internal 

citations omitted).  

III. Argument  

10. In her motion, Defendant Anderson seeks an order directing the 

Government to prepare and file a bill of particulars that provides the following 

information:  

A. The dates and locations of trips taken by Anderson that the 

Government intends to prove were part of the conspiracy charged 

in Count 1;  

B. The votes cast by Anderson identified by date, substance, and 

matter that the Government intends to prove were part of the 

conspiracy charged in Count 1; [and]  

C. The acts of pressure, advice, and influence by Anderson 

identified by date, substance, matter, and recipient that the 

Government intends to prove were part of the conspiracy charged 

in Count 1…  

ECF No. 384 at 5-6.  
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11. Defendant Anderson’s request for a bill of particulars should be denied 

because the detailed third superseding indictment, and extensive discovery and early  

Jencks disclosures made by the government are more than sufficient to avoid the 

type of prejudicial surprise at trial that a bill of particulars is meant to guard against.  

Indeed, the information that Defendant Anderson seeks through a bill of a particulars 

is the type for which the Eleventh Circuit has stated a bill of particulars is 

inappropriate.  Curiously—and perhaps in recognition that binding Eleventh Circuit 

jurisprudence with respect to bills of particular are not favorable to her position— 

Defendant Anderson’s motion does not cite any binding authority from this circuit.   

Rather, her motion relies on district court opinions from the Eastern District of New 

York and one opinion from the Second Circuit Court of Appeals—neither of which 

are binding on this Honorable Court or in this case.  

12. Defendant Anderson is essentially asking for answers to civil 

contention interrogatories. That is not a proper purpose of a bill of particulars. See, 

e.g., United States v. Sherwood, No. CR20-0155-JCC, 2021 WL 4893507, at *2 

(W.D. Wash.  

Oct. 20, 2021) (rejecting a defendant’s request for a bill of particulars about which 

facts were of legal consequence because while “[s]uch requests can be proper in civil 

cases,” “Defendant cannot seek a bill of particulars to circumvent the limits on 

federal criminal discovery” and “Defendant cites no legal authority that supports 
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making the Government explain which facts trigger what part of the [legal] 

definition, nor has the Court been able to identify any”).     

  

  

IV. CONCLUSION  

  Based on the foregoing, the Government respectfully requests this Honorable  

Court deny the Defendant’s Motion for a Bill of Particulars.  

Respectfully submitted.   

              JASON R. COODY  

              United States Attorney  

  

              /s/ Justin M. Keen               

              JUSTIN M. KEEN   

              ANDREW J. GROGAN    

           STEPHEN M. KUNZ  

              Assistant U.S. Attorneys  

              Florida Bar No. 021034  

              Florida Bar No. 85932  

              Florida Bar No. 322415  

              111 North Adams St., 4th Floor  

              Tallahassee, FL 32301    

           (850) 942-8430        

       justin.keen@usdoj.gov          

     andrew.grogan@usdoj.gov          

     stephen.kunz@usdoj.gov  

                

  

LOCAL RULE 7.1 CERTIFICATE  
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 I certify that the foregoing does not exceed 8,000 words, per Microsoft Word’s word 

count, which complies with the word limit requirements set forth in Local Rule  

7.1(F).   

              /s/ Justin M. Keen               

              JUSTIN M. KEEN  

              Assistant United States Attorney 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  

  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I electronically filed the foregoing document with 

the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF on December 12, 2022, for service on all 

parties herein.  

 /s/ Justin M. Keen     

JUSTIN M. KEEN  

Assistant United States Attorney  

  


